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Prominently sited on a hill amidst 100-year old cedars, magnolias, oaks,
wois d'arcs, hickories and crepe nyrtles, the Dial-Williamson House
stancs as one of Harrison County's exemplary Greek Revival plantation
YLouses. Built between 1841-44, the Dial-Williamson House was orisinally
constructed as a two~-room, dog trot log house, tvpical of early Texas
frontier architecture. During the ownership of G, C. Dial the house
was enlarged to a square form with hipped roof. nesting on a founda-
tion of bois d'arc viers and native red field stone, the enlarged house
was framed by heavv hand-squared timbers and sheathed on the exterior

in board and batten siding, all of which remain today.

To the simple form were added well-oropertioned and finely articulatad
Creek Revival details, Across the main (south) facade extends an inset
gallery supported hv six handsomely proportioned scuare columns. These
suoports rest on a molded base, have sguare chamfered shafts and are
topped by a molded capital. The symmetrical, five-bay main facade
disvlays a wide, central double door, surrounded by sideliochts of three
rectangular lights over a molded panel and a six~light transom. A
beautifully proportioneé entablature crowns the composition., Flanking
the door are four narrov, doukle-hung, f£loor lencth windows containing
six-over-nine lights and crowned by an entablature identical to taat

of the main entrance.

The sides and rear facades have few Greek Revival ornamentations and

the additions made to the house during the 1870's and again in tae 1960's
conceal som e of the symmetrical arrangement of the basic square block.
The east facade displays the formal symmetry of the front elevation in
its five-bav composition, The central double door is slightly inset

and contains only a simple two-light transom. Flanking both sides of
the east entrance are two simply framed six-over-six light windows and
petween each pair of windows is an exterior brick end chimney. Origi-
nally the west facade was identical to the east, but the arrangement

at the northwest corner of the house has been altered by an addition,
Across the rear (north) a two-room addition was attached in the 1870's.
The original chimney remains on the east end of this addition., At the
nortawest corner of the house the present owners have built a hip-roofed
kitchen wing and a screened porch extends across part of the north
facade.,

. The interior nlan of the original Greek Revival house, whose front nor-
tien incorporates the original log structure, varies from the usual Treek
mevival 2lan of a central hall with rooms on each side, Instead, the
nall is perocendicularly iiisected yielding one central hall from south
to north and another from east to vest, dividing the house into four
rooms. The molded haseboards, door and window cornices and the board
and hatten ceilinas attest to the craftsmanship of the pbuilder. In
addition, two of the original classically molded mantles remnain, and
have heen used as models for other reconstructed mantles. ©On each side
of the interior double doors which open from the parlor onto the central
hall, panels have heen revealed to show the log construction of those roors,
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Built as a double log, dog~trot cabin between 1841-44 and enlarged

. to a Greek Revival house in the mid-19th century, the Dial-Williamson
House is an excellent example of the mid-19th century Greek Revival
pPlantation houses built in Harrison Count « Although simple in
ornamentation, the house displavs some notable architectural features
such as the refinement of details in the molded columns and the
classically molded entablatures above the south (front) door and
windows, as well as the perpendicularly bisecting cross hall vari-

ation on the standard Greek Revival central hall plan,

The Dial-Williamson House derives its name from two prominent 19th
century owners, G. C. Dial, a wealthy and influential planter in

the mic-19th century and J. B. Williamson, a powerful local
politician in the years following the Civil War. The two original
log rooms were probably built by the first landowner, Henry Morgan,
who had been awarded a land grant by the Republic of Texas, G. C.
Dial acguired the property in 1844 and lived in the house until
1869. He enlarged the house from the early Texas log structure into
a refined four-room Greek Revival residence, Dial was one of Harri-
son County's significant early landowners and cotton farmers, When
he was courting Anna Paguet of “arshall, Sam ouston was a frecuent
visitor in Dial's home., J. 3. Williamson, a Republican politician
and county judge during Reconstruction, bougnt the Dial house in
1869, 7illiamson was the first and only Peoublican county judge

of Harrison Countv until the 1970's. After illiamson's death in
1883, the house was occupied until the 1940°'s by his descendents,

In 1962 the current ovners, 'ir, and ‘rs, D, J. Gregg,bought the
Property and restored the house to use as their retirement home,
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outbuildings included on the nominated property are described below:

Barn: southwest of the main house. This structure is a wood frame
building (13' x 12') with hipped roof. Although the date of
construction is uncertain, this is the oldest outbuilding on the
property, and likely dates from the same period as the house.

Carriage House: immediately west of the main house. This one-
story frame building with clapboard siding was built from wood of
the old kitchen outbuilding. It has a pitched roof with a cupola.
The pitch of the roof changes at both the east and west ends to
form an open shed.

Slave or Servants' Quarters: southeast of the house. This building
is a one-story pitch-roofed cottage with one main room and a shed
room at the rear. The two-bay main facade with a single door and
window is sheltered by a gallery supported on three square columns
with molded trim. Although it was removed from its original
location at 203 W. Grand Avenue in Marshall in 1964, the building
did serve as servant quarters there at the Key family plantation,
which had been in existence since before the Civil War. The
present owner believes it may also have houses slaves before the
War.

Well House: north of the house. A new brick well-house covering

a deep water well dug by the Greggs.
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The nominated property is enclosed by a fence forming a rectangle
approximately 500 feet on each side, the southeast corner of which

is described as the "fence corner post in the west margin of the
Hynson Springs Road (FM 449) and formerly known as the Marshall

and Gilmer Road (50 feet wide), said corner posts being the south
southeast corner of the 80 acre tract conveyed to Eleanor Attebery
Cooper by deed dated December 15. 1936 from W. H. Attebery et al,
recorded in Volume 221, Page 282 of the Deed Records of said county
and also being the south southwest corner of a 10 acre tract conveyed
to J. M. Chambliss by S. M. Mullican by deed dated August 25, 1942
recorded in vVolume 250, Page 303 of the Deed Records of said county.."
(From Volume 696, Page 431, Deed Records of Harrison County) .
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